
 

 

TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 
3546 S. Straits Hwy, Indian River, MI  49749 
April 2, 2024   7:00 PM REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. Call to order  
2. Pledge to flag  
3. Roll call  
4. Board member conflict of interest statement (if applicable)  
5. Public Hearing – 6-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
6. Approval of meeting agenda  
7. Public Comment of agenda items (up to 3 minutes on agenda items only) 
8. Approval of consent agenda  

a. Bills Report  
b. Treasurer Report  
c.  Budget Adjustments 
d.  Minutes  
e.  Reports:  

 Assessor 

 DDA  

 FOIA  

 Parks  

 Police  

 Sewer 
9. Old business  

a.   Property Sale - GLOW 
b.   Commercial Rehab District – North Star 
c.  

10. New business  
a.  MGD Commerce Park Resolution 
b.  Township Credit Card 
c.  Pay Setting 
d.  Sewer Project Bids, Phase 1 SAD 
e.    

11. Public comments (up to 3 minutes) 
12. Board comments  
13. Adjournment 



Project Owner FY  Start FY Complete Cost Potential Funding

Township Parking Lot (Martha Street) Admin 2025 2025 205,000.00$       Land Sales/General Fund

Basketball Court Resurfacing Parks 2025 2025 27,000.00$         General & Parks Reserve Fund

West Burt Lake Boat Launch Admin 2025 2025 15,000.00$         General Fund

Devoe Beach Bathroom Replacement Parks 2025 2025 185,000.00$       DNR Grant 

Cooperation Park Bathrooms Parks 2024 2024 67,000.00$         County Grant

IT/Security Upgrades Admin 2025 2025 15,000.00$         General Fund/Election Grant

      Green Docks Bathroom Replacement Parks 2025 2025 140,000.00$       DNR Grant 

Cemeteries Admin 2025 2025 15,000.00$         General Fund

Phase 3 Sewer Expansion Admin 2025 tbd 6,500,000.00$   SAD/Grant

Cemeteries Admin 2026 2026 15,000.00$         General Fund

Marina Park Boat Launch Bathroom Replacement Parks 2027 2028 50,000.00$         Passport Grant/Gneral Fund

6,987,000.00$   

Project Owner FY  Start FY Complete Cost Potential Funding

Airport Entry/Service Rd paving & Fence Replace Airport 2025 2026 135,000.00$       Federal Hwy/Local Aid

Runway repave Airport 2025 2026 200,000.00$       MDOT/10% General Fund

335,000.00$       

Project Owner FY  Start FY Complete Cost Potential Funding

Vehicle replacement Police 2025 2025 48,000.00$         Police Budget

Training Room Police 2026 2026 24,000.00$         Police Budget

Vehicle replacement Police 2027 2027 48,000.00$         Police Budget

120,000.00$       

Project Owner FY  Start FY Complete Cost Potential Funding

Sidestreet Sidewalks - cost per block DDA 2026 2027 50,000.00$         TIF

Pathway from Vivios to Coop Park DDA 2027 2032 500,000.00$       TIF

550,000.00$       

Project Owner FY  Start FY Complete Cost Potential Funding

Cressy Street ADMIN/SAD 2025 2025 19,600.00$         SAD/General Fund (10%)

19,600.00$         

Roads Special Assessment Districts Desired

Total

Total

Tuscarora Township Six Year Capital Improvement Plan Projects (PROPOSED)

DDA Priorty Needed

Total

Priority - Needed

Priority - Desired

Police Dept  Priorty Needed

Total

Total



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                Bills/Invoices 

  



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 1/2Page:03/29/2024 02:20 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/03/2024 - 04/03/2024
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

NOpen119.50 119.50 04/19/202403/19/2024BURT LAKE MARINA8981
NOpen758.50 758.50 07/30/202307/01/2023CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8891
NOpen14.67 14.67 04/30/202403/07/2024CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8902
NOpen8.99 8.99 04/30/202403/05/2024CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8903
NOpen137.56 137.56 04/30/202403/06/2024CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8906

919.72 919.72 Total for vendor 00093 - CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS:

NOpen292.50 292.50 04/30/202403/09/2024CHEBOYGAN COUNTY TREASURER8933
NOpen3,766.11 3,766.11 04/30/202403/15/2024CUMMINGS, MCCLOREY, DAVIS & ACHO8944
NOpen266.14 266.14 04/05/202403/05/2024ELECTION SOURCE8932
NOpen422.09 422.09 03/25/202403/25/2024ELECTION SOURCE8967

688.23 688.23 Total for vendor 00595 - ELECTION SOURCE:

NOpen110.40 110.40 03/30/202402/29/2024EMMET COUNTY8934
NOpen929.17 929.17 02/27/202401/25/2024FERRELLGAS8907
NOpen740.61 740.61 03/20/202403/01/2024GANNETT MICHIGAN LOCALIQ8943
NOpen3,420.86 3,420.86 04/21/202403/21/2024GFL ENVIRONMENTAL/NORTHERN A-18979
NOpen183.08 183.08 04/03/202403/28/2024GORDON TEMPLE JR8982
NOpen87.21 87.21 04/05/202403/01/2024KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC8887
NOpen75.22 75.22 03/31/202403/01/2024KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC8925
NOpen406.77 406.77 04/26/202403/27/2024KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC8978

569.20 569.20 Total for vendor 00265 - KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC:

NOpen2,835.11 2,835.11 03/31/202402/28/2024KCI 8885
NOpen6,660.00 6,660.00 04/30/202403/19/2024MEAD & HUNT8946
NOpen9,686.94 9,686.94 04/01/202403/08/2024MESSA8931
NOpen11,830.19 11,830.19 04/30/202403/31/2024MUNICIPAL EMP. RETIREMENT8976
NOpen170.24 170.24 03/31/202403/18/2024NORTH STAR STONE8936
NOpen2,375.00 2,375.00 04/26/202403/26/2024NORTHERN LAKES ECONOMIC ALLIANCE8969
NOpen533.29 533.29 04/04/202403/08/2024PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER8942
NOpen105.07 105.07 03/31/202402/23/2024POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE8888
NOpen105.07 105.07 04/18/202403/18/2024POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE8959

210.14 210.14 Total for vendor 00385 - POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE:

NOpen30.00 30.00 03/31/202402/29/2024RENTAL EXPRESS8912
NOpen125.00 125.00 01/31/202401/01/2024RENTAL EXPRESS8914

155.00 155.00 Total for vendor 00400 - RENTAL EXPRESS:

NOpen240.00 240.00 04/30/202403/12/2024SCREENGRAPHICS8908
NOpen363.17 363.17 04/01/202403/15/2024STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY8965
NOpen578.25 578.25 03/29/202403/14/2024TANNER ELECTRIC, INC.8940
NOpen1,098.50 1,098.50 04/01/202403/01/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8927
NOpen2,014.52 2,014.52 04/01/202403/01/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8928
NOpen1,986.79 1,986.79 04/05/202403/05/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8929
NOpen558.50 558.50 04/12/202403/12/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8930

5,658.31 5,658.31 Total for vendor 00515 - TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.:



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 2/2Page:03/29/2024 02:20 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/03/2024 - 04/03/2024
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

NOpen40.82 40.82 04/18/202403/19/2024VANS BUSINESS MACHINE8935
NOpen50.40 50.40 04/03/202403/19/2024VC3 INC8962
NOpen412.00 412.00 04/29/202403/28/2024WINDEMULLER8980
NOpen944.13 944.13 03/21/202403/06/2024YOUR FLEETCARD PROGRAM8926

54,482.37 54,482.37 # of Invoices:              39  # Due:    39           Totals:
0.00 0.00 # of Credit Memos:           0  # Due:     0           Totals:

54,482.37 54,482.37 Net of Invoices and Credit Memos:

--- TOTALS BY FUND ---

17,663.83 17,663.83 101 - GENERAL FUND
24,299.41 24,299.41 207 - POLICE FUND
1,826.27 1,826.27 271 - LIBRARY FUND

10,692.86 10,692.86 590 - SEWER FUND

--- TOTALS BY DEPT/ACTIVITY ---

292.50 292.50 000 - 
1,548.92 1,548.92 101 - TOWNSHIP BOARD

533.29 533.29 253 - TREASURER
2,835.11 2,835.11 257 - ASSESSOR

688.23 688.23 262 - ELECTIONS
3,483.29 3,483.29 265 - BUILDING AND GROUNDS
1,126.11 1,126.11 266 - ATTORNEY COUNSEL

24,299.41 24,299.41 301 - POLICE
380.00 380.00 446 - ROADS STREETS BRIDGES
110.40 110.40 528 - RUBBISH COLLECTION-DISPOSAL

10,692.86 10,692.86 536 - WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS
5,948.51 5,948.51 751 - PARKS AND RECREATION

170.24 170.24 754 - VETERANS PIER
240.00 240.00 756 - BOAT LAUNCH

1,826.27 1,826.27 790 - LIBRARY
307.23 307.23 901 - CIP



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 1/4Page:03/29/2024 02:23 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 03/07/2024 - 04/03/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

YPaid0.00 49.95 03/16/202402/13/2024ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP8917
YPaid0.00 49.95 03/16/202402/28/2024ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP8918
YPaid0.00 270.00 03/16/202403/01/2024ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP8919
YPaid0.00 89.95 03/16/202403/08/2024ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP8920

0.00 459.85 Total for vendor 00765 - ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP:

NVoid0.00 0.00 03/31/202403/01/2024ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP LLC8886
NVoid0.00 0.00 04/07/202403/08/2024ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP LLC8889
NVoid0.00 0.00 03/15/202402/28/2024ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP LLC8890

0.00 0.00 Total for vendor 00765 - ANAVON TECHNOLOGY GROUP LLC:

YPaid0.00 300.00 03/31/202403/05/2024BACKYARD BIRDS AND BEYOND8958
NOpen119.50 119.50 04/19/202403/19/2024BURT LAKE MARINA8981
NOpen758.50 758.50 07/30/202307/01/2023CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8891
NOpen14.67 14.67 04/30/202403/07/2024CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8902
NOpen8.99 8.99 04/30/202403/05/2024CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8903
NOpen137.56 137.56 04/30/202403/06/2024CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS8906

919.72 919.72 Total for vendor 00093 - CAR QUEST AUTO PARTS:

YPaid0.00 56.23 04/04/202403/05/2024CENGAGE LEARNING INC/GALE8950
YPaid0.00 44.94 03/31/202403/01/2024CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT8949
NOpen292.50 292.50 04/30/202403/09/2024CHEBOYGAN COUNTY TREASURER8933
YPaid0.00 241,990.86 04/01/202403/01/2024CITIZENS NATIONAL BANK8895
YPaid0.00 70.00 03/31/202402/24/2024CLASSIC CLEANING8951
YPaid0.00 29.33 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8860
YPaid0.00 28.90 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8861
YPaid0.00 28.77 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8862
YPaid0.00 28.77 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8863
YPaid0.00 75.12 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8864
YPaid0.00 29.46 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8865
YPaid0.00 29.90 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8866
YPaid0.00 39.19 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8867
YPaid0.00 40.90 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8868
YPaid0.00 299.01 03/20/202402/27/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8869
YPaid0.00 1,574.10 03/25/202403/01/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8880
YPaid0.00 463.99 03/25/202403/01/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8881
YPaid0.00 169.58 03/25/202403/01/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8883
YPaid0.00 32.46 04/09/202403/18/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8956
YPaid0.00 41.43 04/09/202403/18/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8957
YPaid0.00 39.05 04/10/202403/19/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8960
YPaid0.00 174.48 04/10/202403/19/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8961
YPaid0.00 1,213.20 04/09/202403/18/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8963
YPaid0.00 38.81 04/17/202403/20/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8964
YPaid0.00 2,808.16 04/15/202403/22/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY8971

0.00 7,184.61 Total for vendor 00136 - CONSUMERS ENERGY:

NOpen3,766.11 3,766.11 04/30/202403/15/2024CUMMINGS, MCCLOREY, DAVIS & ACHO8944



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 2/4Page:03/29/2024 02:23 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 03/07/2024 - 04/03/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

YOpen3,830.93 3,830.93 03/17/202402/21/2024ELAN  FINANCIAL SERVICES8970*
YOpen3,362.05 3,362.05 04/17/202403/21/2024ELAN  FINANCIAL SERVICES8977

7,192.98 7,192.98 Total for vendor 00715 - ELAN  FINANCIAL SERVICES:

NOpen266.14 266.14 04/05/202403/05/2024ELECTION SOURCE8932
NOpen422.09 422.09 03/25/202403/25/2024ELECTION SOURCE8967

688.23 688.23 Total for vendor 00595 - ELECTION SOURCE:

NOpen110.40 110.40 03/30/202402/29/2024EMMET COUNTY8934
NOpen929.17 929.17 02/27/202401/25/2024FERRELLGAS8907
NOpen740.61 740.61 03/20/202403/01/2024GANNETT MICHIGAN LOCALIQ8943
YPaid0.00 256.26 03/30/202402/29/2024GFL ENVIRONMENTAL USA INC - TRASH8898
NOpen3,420.86 3,420.86 04/21/202403/21/2024GFL ENVIRONMENTAL/NORTHERN A-18979
YPaid0.00 270.00 04/30/202403/27/2024GORDON LETT8975
NOpen183.08 183.08 04/03/202403/28/2024GORDON TEMPLE JR8982
YPaid0.00 16.77 04/04/202403/14/2024GREAT LAKES ENERGY8941
NOpen808.22 808.22 03/14/202403/07/2024GROH JAMES & THOMAS EARLE MARRIED8884
NVoid0.00 0.00 04/12/202403/12/2024HARRELL'S INC8968
YPaid0.00 589.54 03/31/202403/01/2024JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD8953
NOpen87.21 87.21 04/05/202403/01/2024KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC8887
NOpen75.22 75.22 03/31/202403/01/2024KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC8925
NOpen406.77 406.77 04/26/202403/27/2024KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC8978

569.20 569.20 Total for vendor 00265 - KALAMAZOO SANITARY SUPPLY, LLC:

NOpen2,835.11 2,835.11 03/31/202402/28/2024KCI 8885
NOpen6,660.00 6,660.00 04/30/202403/19/2024MEAD & HUNT8946
NOpen9,686.94 9,686.94 04/01/202403/08/2024MESSA8931
YPaid0.00 375.66 04/01/202403/01/2024MIDWEST TAPE LLC8954
YPaid0.00 1,499.01 03/28/202402/27/2024MITCHELL GRAPHICS INC8952
NOpen11,830.19 11,830.19 04/30/202403/31/2024MUNICIPAL EMP. RETIREMENT8976
NOpen170.24 170.24 03/31/202403/18/2024NORTH STAR STONE8936
NOpen2,375.00 2,375.00 04/26/202403/26/2024NORTHERN LAKES ECONOMIC ALLIANCE8969
NOpen533.29 533.29 04/04/202403/08/2024PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER8942
NOpen105.07 105.07 03/31/202402/23/2024POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE8888
NOpen105.07 105.07 04/18/202403/18/2024POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE8959

210.14 210.14 Total for vendor 00385 - POLLARD'S QUICK LUBE:

YPaid CR0.00 45.15 04/04/202403/14/2024PRESQUE ISLE ELEC. COOP.8974
YPaid0.00 53.32 04/04/202403/14/2024PRESQUE ISLE ELEC. COOP.8972
YPaid0.00 49.05 04/04/202403/14/2024PRESQUE ISLE ELEC. COOP.8973

0.00 147.52 Total for vendor 00389 - PRESQUE ISLE ELEC. COOP.:

NOpen30.00 30.00 03/31/202402/29/2024RENTAL EXPRESS8912
NOpen125.00 125.00 01/31/202401/01/2024RENTAL EXPRESS8914

155.00 155.00 Total for vendor 00400 - RENTAL EXPRESS:

NOpen240.00 240.00 04/30/202403/12/2024SCREENGRAPHICS8908



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 3/4Page:03/29/2024 02:23 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 03/07/2024 - 04/03/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

NOpen363.17 363.17 04/01/202403/15/2024STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY8965
YPaid0.00 685.00 10/25/202310/13/2023STATE OF MICHIGAN - MESC8915
YPaid0.00 20.01 01/04/202401/04/2024STATE OF MICHIGAN - MESC8916
YPaid0.00 53.00 01/27/202401/27/2024STATE OF MICHIGAN - MESC8921
YPaid0.00 19.43 01/04/202401/04/2024STATE OF MICHIGAN - MESC8922
YPaid0.00 51.98 01/04/202401/04/2024STATE OF MICHIGAN - MESC8923

0.00 829.42 Total for vendor 00426 - STATE OF MICHIGAN - MESC:

NOpen578.25 578.25 03/29/202403/14/2024TANNER ELECTRIC, INC.8940
NOpen1,098.50 1,098.50 04/01/202403/01/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8927
NOpen2,014.52 2,014.52 04/01/202403/01/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8928
NOpen1,986.79 1,986.79 04/05/202403/05/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8929
NOpen558.50 558.50 04/12/202403/12/2024TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.8930

5,658.31 5,658.31 Total for vendor 00515 - TEMPERATURE CONTROL, INC.:

YPaid0.00 82,720.50 03/31/202403/09/2024TUSCARORA TWP VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPT8897
YPaid0.00 2,008.93 03/12/202403/12/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8892
YPaid0.00 1,869.18 03/12/202403/12/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8893
YPaid0.00 216.95 03/12/202403/12/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8894
YPaid0.00 502.15 03/15/202412/01/2023UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8901
YPaid0.00 610.18 03/15/202402/01/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8904
YPaid0.00 432.40 03/15/202403/01/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8905
YPaid0.00 374.09 03/15/202412/01/2023UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8909
YPaid0.00 275.95 03/15/202403/01/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8910
YPaid0.00 275.95 03/15/202402/01/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8911
YPaid0.00 275.95 03/15/202401/01/2024UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT8913

0.00 6,841.73 Total for vendor 00749 - UPTIME TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT:

YPaid0.00 132.99 04/13/202403/14/2024VANS BUSINESS MACHINE8955
NOpen40.82 40.82 04/18/202403/19/2024VANS BUSINESS MACHINE8935

40.82 173.81 Total for vendor 00465 - VANS BUSINESS MACHINE:

NOpen50.40 50.40 04/03/202403/19/2024VC3 INC8962
YPaid0.00 122.55 03/24/202403/03/2024VERIZON WIRELESS8896
NOpen412.00 412.00 04/29/202403/28/2024WINDEMULLER8980
NOpen944.13 944.13 03/21/202403/06/2024YOUR FLEETCARD PROGRAM8926

62,483.57 406,392.01 # of Invoices:             102  # Due:    42           Totals:
0.00 0.00 # of Credit Memos:           0  # Due:     0           Totals:

62,483.57 406,392.01 Net of Invoices and Credit Memos:

(62.90)*   1 Net Invoices have Credits Totalling:



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP 4/4Page:03/29/2024 02:23 PM
User: CHRIS
DB: Tuscarora

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 03/07/2024 - 04/03/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Ref#

--- TOTALS BY FUND ---

19,021.27 25,470.27 101 - GENERAL FUND
0.00 82,720.50 206 - FIRE FUND

25,434.67 29,111.44 207 - POLICE FUND
0.00 2,382.88 219 - STREET LIGHTING FUND

6,526.55 10,177.00 271 - LIBRARY FUND
0.00 29.46 502 - BOAT LAUNCH

10,692.86 13,701.38 590 - SEWER FUND
808.22 808.22 703 - CURRENT TAX COLLECTION FUND

0.00 241,990.86 860 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

--- TOTALS BY DEPT/ACTIVITY ---

1,100.72 1,100.72 000 - 
2,906.36 7,194.51 101 - TOWNSHIP BOARD

533.29 533.29 253 - TREASURER
2,835.11 2,941.66 257 - ASSESSOR

688.23 688.23 262 - ELECTIONS
3,483.29 3,811.60 265 - BUILDING AND GROUNDS
1,126.11 1,126.11 266 - ATTORNEY COUNSEL

25,434.67 29,111.44 301 - POLICE
0.00 82,720.50 336 - FIRE PROTECTION

380.00 380.00 446 - ROADS STREETS BRIDGES
0.00 2,382.88 448 - STREET LIGHTING
0.00 7,990.86 450 - ROAD AND STREET DETAIL

110.40 110.40 528 - RUBBISH COLLECTION-DISPOSAL
10,692.86 13,701.38 536 - WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS

0.00 298.77 567 - CEMETERY
0.00 127.37 595 - AIRPORT

5,948.51 7,248.36 751 - PARKS AND RECREATION
170.24 170.24 754 - VETERANS PIER
240.00 269.46 756 - BOAT LAUNCH

6,526.55 10,177.00 790 - LIBRARY
307.23 307.23 901 - CIP

0.00 234,000.00 906 - 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treasurer Report 

  



CASH SUMMARY BY BANK FOR TUSCARORA TWP 1/2Page: 03/29/2024 04:16 PM
User: JAN DILLAHA
DB: Tuscarora

FROM 03/01/2024 TO 03/31/2024

Ending
Balance

03/31/2024
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

03/01/2024Description
Bank Code
Fund

SPAS  2016 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
147,690.81 175,000.00 86,709.34 235,981.47 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT860

147,690.81 175,000.00 86,709.34 235,981.47 2016 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

DDASV  DDA IMMA
528.89 0.00 0.00 528.89 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY248

528.89 0.00 0.00 528.89 DDA IMMA

DDARD  DDA USDA RD BOND
19,800.00 0.00 0.00 19,800.00 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY248

19,800.00 0.00 0.00 19,800.00 DDA USDA RD BOND

POOL  GENERAL - ALL
477,384.72 149,381.27 16,004.58 610,761.41 GENERAL FUND101

3,874.01 82,720.50 177,512.96 (90,918.45)FIRE FUND206

1,258,867.69 95,303.73 26,322.70 1,327,848.72 POLICE FUND207

22,299.51 2,431.93 0.00 24,731.44 STREET LIGHTING FUND219

140,948.75 0.00 0.00 140,948.75 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY248

304,461.19 13,974.12 187,585.96 130,849.35 LIBRARY FUND271

29,328.35 0.00 0.00 29,328.35 ARPA FUND282

122,254.66 29.46 0.00 122,284.12 BOAT LAUNCH502

(130,700.23)100,021.38 0.00 (30,678.85)SEWER FUND590

0.00 50,333.27 50,314.29 18.98 IMPREST PAYROLL FUND704

2,203.08 241,990.86 261,709.34 (17,515.40)SPECIAL ASSESSMENT860

2,230,921.73 736,186.52 719,449.83 2,247,658.42 GENERAL - ALL

LIBIN  IRAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT
103,329.54 0.00 0.00 103,329.54 LIBRARY FUND271

103,329.54 0.00 0.00 103,329.54 IRAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

LIBSP  LIBRARY SPECIAL
28,106.89 0.00 0.00 28,106.89 LIBRARY FUND271

28,106.89 0.00 0.00 28,106.89 LIBRARY SPECIAL

ADDRE  SEWER ADD REU
324,209.29 0.00 0.00 324,209.29 SEWER FUND590

324,209.29 0.00 0.00 324,209.29 SEWER ADD REU

SGRAN  SEWER PHASE 1 AND 2
50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 SEWER FUND590



CASH SUMMARY BY BANK FOR TUSCARORA TWP 2/2Page: 03/29/2024 04:16 PM
User: JAN DILLAHA
DB: Tuscarora

FROM 03/01/2024 TO 03/31/2024

Ending
Balance

03/31/2024
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

03/01/2024Description
Bank Code
Fund

50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 SEWER PHASE 1 AND 2

RRI  SEWER RRI
96,599.30 43.28 43.28 96,599.30 SEWER FUND590

96,599.30 43.28 43.28 96,599.30 SEWER RRI

SEWER  SEWER SPEC ASSESSMENT
154,117.01 0.00 0.00 154,117.01 SEWER FUND590

154,117.01 0.00 0.00 154,117.01 SEWER SPEC ASSESSMENT

TXCHK  TAX CHECKING
421,939.08 5,783,087.56 189,327.83 6,015,698.81 CURRENT TAX COLLECTION FUND703

421,939.08 5,783,087.56 189,327.83 6,015,698.81 TAX CHECKING

3,527,292.54 6,694,317.36 995,530.28 9,226,079.62 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



 

 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 2, 2024 
 
TITLE: Budget Adjustments 
 
SUMMARY: Correction of pervious revenues/expenditures 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Neutral 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Motion to adjust 
 
Revenue (increases) 
101-000-426.00 SWAMP TAX/STATE LAND TAX 10,100 .00 
101-000-434.00 TRAILER PARK FEES 1,112.00  
101-000-445.00 PENALTIES ON TAXES 2,000.00   
101-000-491.00 CEMETERY FEES - OPEN & CLOSE 7,000.00 
101-000-541.00 GRANT - STATE 0.00 43,669.80  
101-000-566.00 STATE REC GRANT 100,000.00  
101-000-626.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES RENDERED 2100.00 
101-000-642.00 CHARGES FOR CEMETERY GRAVE SITES  24,430.00  
101-000-667.01 AIRPORT HANGER LEASE 7,483.90  
 
Expenditures (increase)  
590-901-970.00 SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 19,857.00 
 
PREPARED BY: Supervisor 
 
DEPT/BOARD/COMMISSION: Board of Trustees 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Minutes 

  



TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP
3546 S. Straits Hwy, Indian River, MI  49749

March 5, 2024   7:00 PM REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

ITEM 1: CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Kramer at 7:00 pm.

ITEM 2:  The fire department led the gathering in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.

Announcements – we are live on YouTube tonight. We received a $200,000 grant for repairs to this 
building from the Michigan Public Service Commission. Phase 3 of the sewer system was approved for $1
million from the House and has been accepted by the Senate for review. We hope to hear something 
soon. 

ITEM 3: ROLL CALL
Present – Supervisor Kramer, Trustee Vance, Treasurer Dillaha, Trustee Pearson.
Absent: Clerk Reidsma. Staff Present: Deputy Clerk Passino, Ron Odenwald, Chris Green.
Quorum present – yes

ITEM 4: BOARD MEMBER CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT
No conflict of interest offered. 

ITEM 5: PUBLIC HEARING ON NABANOIS TRAIL
Public comment began at 7:00 pm.  Comments ended at 7:08 pm.
No comments. Letter received has been included in the file.

ITEM 6: APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA
MOTION: Approve the Meeting Agenda.
Moved by Pearson, seconded by Dillaha.
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous voice vote.

ITEM 7: PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS
The floor was open for public comment at 7:08 pm. Closed at 7:09 pm. No public comments.

ITEM 8: APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
Consent agenda items include – Bills Report, Treasurer Report, Budget Adjustments, Minutes, Reports 
by:  Assessor, DDA, FOIA, Parks, Police, Sewer, Wake Waiver, Parks Commission Vacancy, Delegation 
of Authority.
MOTION: Move to approve the consent agenda. Moved by Vance, seconded by Pearson.
MOTION CARRIED by unanimous voice vote.

ITEM 9: OLD BUSINESS
ITEM 9a: Nabanois Trail Resolutions
MOTION: Move to approve Nabanois Trail Resolution #2024-4, which was read aloud by Supervisor 
Kramer. Moved by Kramer, seconded by Dillaha. 
MOTION CARRIED by roll call vote. Ayes: Vance, Pearson, Kramer, Dillaha.

ITEM 10:  NEW BUSINESS
ITEM 10a: DDA Request/Presentation
MOTION:  To give the DDA a short-term loan, with no interest to fund the underground electric pole 
project from the right side of the street in the amount of $141,000. The DDA will be reimbursed through 
the USDA (Sam account). Motion by Dillaha, seconded by Vance.
MOTION CARRIED by roll call vote. Ayes: Vance, Pearson, Kramer, Dillaha.
ITEM 10b:  Devoe Beach Modern Bathrooms Public Input



TUSCARORA TOWNSHIP
3546 S. Straits Hwy, Indian River, MI  49749

March 5, 2024   7:00 PM REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

To remove vault toilets, replace to modern toilets, well, sewer, ADA.
Public comment began at 7:28 pm. Comments ended 7:30 pm. No public comments.

ITEM 10c: Devoe Beach Modern Bathrooms Grant Resolution 2024-05
MOTION: Move to approve Devoe Beach Modern Bathrooms Grant Resolution, which was read aloud by 
Supervisor Kramer.
Moved by Vance, seconded by Pearson. MOTION CARRIED by roll call vote. Ayes: Dillaha, Kramer, 
Pearson, Vance.

ITEM 10d: Restore Local Choice Resolution 2024-06
MOTION: Move to approve Restore Local Choice Resolution, which was read aloud by Deputy 
Supervisor Oldenwald.
Moved by Pearson, seconded by Vance.
MOTION CARRIED by roll call vote. Ayes: Dillaha, Kramer, Pearson, Vance.

ITEM 10e:  CIP Review
Reviewed items. The board will review again later and there will be a public hearing. MOTION CARRIED 
by unanimous voice vote.

ITEM 10f: May Meeting Date
MOTION: Move the May Meeting Date to May 14.
Moved by Dillaha, seconded by Pearson. MOTION CARRIED by unanimous voice vote.

ITEM 10g:  Set Compensation – seasonal employees
MOTION:  Move to set the wages from $16.00 - $16.50 per hour to start at the discretion of the 
maintenance supervisor. MOTION CARRIED by voice vote.

ITEM 11: PUBLIC COMMENT
Public comment began at 8:04 pm.  Comments ended at 8:18 pm.
K. Rutkowski – Library cannot use public funds for bonuses.
P. McGinnis – truck purchase, parking lot lights, law firms, friends, people quitting.
D. Nivelt – village center overlay and parking issues at NAPA.
B. Henderson – meetings notices, issue with fireworks, parks truck, no voice mail.
R. Odenwald – thank you to Ginop for donation of light tower for elections.
T. Maves – corrective action, revenue, wages, basketball courts, land adjacent to waterways.
D. Webb – financial reports need better review.
S. Fisher – would like to see monthly trial balance report.

ITEM 12: BOARD COMMENTS
Four board members commented.

ITEM 13: MOTION TO ADJOURN
Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm.
MOTION by Vance, seconded by Pearson.

Respectfully submitted by Deputy Clerk, Passino.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reports 

  



DDA 



FOIA 

1 request fulfilled 



Parks Commission 



Tuscarora Township Parks committee meeting minutes
Regular meeting 03/13/2024 7:00pm Tuscarora Township Hall

Call to order 7:07pm
Roll Call: present Dave Meckstroth, Courtney Quick, Beau DePauw

Absent Alan Maves

Motion made by Courtney Quick to allow Bebot to clean Devoe beach
using their “robot”. Support by Dave Meckstroth
Motion carried

Motion By Courtney Quick to raise boat launch fees to $9/day and
$49/season. Support by Dave Meckstroth
Motion carried.

Motion made by Courtney Quick to allow the installation of a water fountain
at Marina park near the bike station. Support by Dave Meckstroth
Motion Carried.

Motion made by Courtney Quick to switch to Mead-Hunt for water sample
testing on a yearly basis. Support by Dave Meckstroth.
Motion carried.

Motion made by Courtney Quick to adjourn at 7:42pm. Support by Dave
Meckstroth. Motion carried.



Police 











Sewer 



 

 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 2, 2024 
 
TITLE: Sewer Report   
 
SUMMARY:  
 
The plant expansion and Phase 1 collection systems bids were opened March 28th. 
 
The Engineer and USDA are reviewing the bids and will make a recommendation to the 
township in the next few days. 
 
Phase 2 collection system application is in EGLE review for permit. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   TBD 
 
PREPARED BY:   Supervisor 
 
DEPT/BOARD/COMMISSION: Board of Trustees 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Old Business 

  



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  April 2, 2024  
 
TITLE:   Real estate closing - GLOW 
 
SUMMARY:    Board approved sale of small township parcel in February to Living Waters 
Global Methodist Church. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  N/A 
  
Recommendation:  Assign Supervisor Robert Kramer to sign all closing documents 
 
PREPARED BY:  Supervisor   
 
DEPT/BOARD/COMMISSION:  Board of Trustees 
 
ATTACHMENTS:     None 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  April 2, 2024  
 
TITLE:   North Star Gardens Request 
 
SUMMARY:    North Star previously requested the establishment of a Commercial 
Rehabilitation District under Public Act 210 of 2005. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  TBD 
  
MOTION:  TBD 
 
PREPARED BY:  Supervisor   
 
DEPT/BOARD/COMMISSION:  Board of Trustees 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    Request & Act information 



Received
Tuscarora Township

NO\/ 1 0 2023

3546 S. Str:aits Hwy.
Indian River, Ml49749

4104 S. STRAITS HWY

INDIAN RIVER, MI49749

North Star Gardens, INC. is requesting that Tuscarora Township create a

Commercial Rehabilitation District for its property located at 4L52 Old Trail Lane
Indian River MI49749. Subsequently we are also requesting a 1O-year property
tax abatement according to PA 210 of 2005.

North Star Gardens INC. intends to create a mixed-use development consisting of
retail space, food service space, office space, and 12 rental cabins on the site at a
cost of approximately $6 million. This will become a significant tourist attraction for
the community at the gateway to Indian River providing for year-round activities

The lakeway/Gearhart family has operated North Star Gardens in Tuscarora
Township and surrounding areas for the past B0 years and wants to create a project
to help boost the economy of Indian River. The tax abatement and a sewer
abatement are necessary to make this project economically feasible.

The project financials will not support the development with just a conventional
bank loan. Therefore, North Star Gardens INC. has approached the Michigan
Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) to consider a grant for the project.
MEDC requires local match from the community for any grant they provide. This
can be in the form of a commercial tax abatement.

Sincerely,

Jeff Jakeway



4755-200127   |   09.20©2020 Michigan Economic Development Corporation

Public Act 210 of 2005, as amended, encourages the 
rehabilitation of commercial property by abating the property 
taxes generated from new investment for a period up to 10 
years. As defined, commercial property is a qualified facility 
that includes a building or group of contiguous buildings of 
commercial property that is 15 years or older, of which the 
primary purpose is the operation of a commercial business 
enterprise or multifamily residential use. A qualified facility 
may also include vacant property or other commercial property 
which, within the immediately preceding 15 years, was 
commercial property. Types of commercial business enterprises 
include office, engineering, research and development, 
warehousing, parts distribution, retail sales, and other 
commercial activities. Multi-family residential is housing that 
consists of five or more units. Commercial properties allocated 
new market tax credits are also considered a qualified facility.

Qualified retail food establishments are considered a qualified 
facility for purposes of granting the tax abatement. These 
establishments include a retail supermarket, grocery store, 
produce market, or delicatessen that offer unprocessed 
USDA-inspected meat and poultry products or meat products 
that carry the USDA organic seal, fresh fruits and vegetables, 
and dairy products for sale to the public. The qualified retail 
food establishment must be located in a “core community” as 
defined in the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (PA 146 of 
2000) or in an area designated as rural as defined by the United 
States Census Bureau and is located in an underserved area.

Commercial property does not include property that is to be 
used as a professional sports stadium or a casino. Land and 
personal property are not eligible for abatement under this act.

Note: This document is offered as a general guide only and  
the legislation should be reviewed by local officials.

WHO IS ELIGIBLE?
“Qualified local government units” mean any city, village  
or township.

WHAT IS REHABILITATION?
Rehabilitation is defined as changes to qualified facilities that 
are required to restore or modify the property, together with 
all appurtenances, to an economically efficient condition.
The new investment in the rehabbed property must result 
in improvements aggregating to more than 10 percent of 

the true cash value of the property at commencement of the 
rehabilitation of the qualified facility. Rehabilitation includes 
the following: improvement of floor loads, correction of 
deficient or excessive height, new or improved fixed building 
equipment including heating, ventilation, and lighting, 
reducing multistory facilities to one or two stories, improved 
structural support including foundations, improved roof 
structure and cover, floor replacement, improved wall 
placement, improved exterior and interior appearance of 
buildings, and other physical changes required to restore or 
change the property to an economically efficient condition.

Rehabilitation also includes new construction on vacant property 
from which a previous structure has been demolished and if the 
new construction is an economic benefit to the local community 
as determined by the qualified local governmental unit.

Rehabilitation for a qualified retail food establishment also 
includes new construction.

WHAT IS THE PROCESS?
Before the Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate 
(i.e., property tax abatement) can be granted to the commercial 
property owner, the city, village or township by resolution of 
its legislative body, must establish a Commercial Rehabilitation 
District. The establishment of the district may be initiated by 
the local government unit or by owners of property comprising 
50 percent of all taxable value of the property in the proposed 
district. The district must be at least three acres in size unless 
it is located in a downtown or business area or contains a 
qualified retail food establishment.

The city, village or township must hold a hearing to establish a 
Commercial Rehabilitation District. Notification of the hearing 
must be given to the county board of commissioners and all 
real property owners in the proposed district.

After the hearing is held and the local unit of government 
determines the district meets the requirements of the act, a 
copy of the resolution adopting the district shall be provided 
to the county where the district is established. Within 28 
days, the county may accept or reject the establishment of the 
district. In a county with a county executive, the executive can 
write a letter rejecting the establishment of the district. In all 
other counties, the county board of commissioners can pass a 
resolution rejecting the establishment of the district.

COMMERCIAL REHABILITATION ACT

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(w520pzmmby1g2te5olmpkqml))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-Act-210-of-2005


4755-200127   |   09.20©2020 Michigan Economic Development Corporation

Once the district is established, the property owners may 
file an application with the local clerk for a commercial 
rehabilitation exemption certificate. Applications are available 
from the Michigan Department of Treasury. The local clerk 
shall provide written notification to the assessor of the local 
unit of government and each taxing jurisdiction that levies ad 
valorem property taxes of the application hearing. The city, 
village or township has 60 days after receipt of the application 
to either approve or disapprove the application. If denied, 
a reason must be given in the resolution. The assessor and 
applicant shall be sent a copy of the unapproved resolution by 
certified mail. If approved, the application and resolution must 
be sent to the State Tax Commission, which will certify or deny 
the application within 60 days. A resolution is not effective 
unless approved by the State Tax Commission.

COMMERCIAL REHABILITATION  
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE
Upon approval by the State Tax Commission, a commercial 
rehabilitation certificate is issued. The property owner must 
pay a Commercial Rehabilitation Tax rather than the normal 
property tax. The certificate must be issued for a period of at 
least one year, but cannot exceed 10 years. Certificates initially 
issued for less than 10 years may be extended, but shall not 
exceed 10 years. The criteria for extensions must be included in 
the resolution approving the abatement.

The Commercial Rehabilitation Tax freezes the taxable value of 
the building and exempts the new investment from local taxes. 
The school operating tax and the State Education Tax (SET) are 
still levied on the new investment. Land and personal property 
cannot be abated under this act.

DISCUSSION
In addition to the Commercial Rehabilitation Act (PA 210 
of 2005), several other property tax abatements are available 
for the rehabilitation of commercial property in Michigan, 
including the Commercial Redevelopment Act (PA 255 of 1978) 
and the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (PA 146 of 2000). 
Each act has unique eligibility requirements, processes, and 
lengths and terms of the abatement. Please refer to the Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) fact sheet for 
more information on each program and consult the authorizing 
statute to determine the best fit for your project needs.

SUPPORTING STATUTE
Public Act 210 of 2005: Commercial Rehabilitation Act

CONTACT INFORMATION
For more information on the Commercial Rehabilitation Act, 
contact the Community Assistance Team (CAT) specialist 
assigned to your territory or visit www.miplace.org.

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(w520pzmmby1g2te5olmpkqml))/mileg.aspx?page=GetObject&objectname=mcl-Act-210-of-2005


Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 1 

The following frequently asked questions are being provided as a service to assessors and 

taxpayers to better inform them about the administration of Public Act 210 of 2005, MCL 207.841 

et seq., as amended. 

 

Note:  The information contained in these frequently asked questions constitutes an analysis 

of one or more statutes and not legal advice.  Since the analysis is limited to general statutory 

requirements, individual facts may result in different conclusions being reached.  Therefore, 

individuals may wish to consult legal counsel. 

 

1. What is a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption? 

 

 The Commercial Rehabilitation Act, PA 210 of 2005, MCL 207.841 et seq., as amended, 

provides a property tax exemption for multifamily residential, commercial business 

enterprises, or qualified retail food establishments that are rehabilitated and meet the 

requirements of the Act.  Types of commercial business enterprises may include, but are 

not limited to: office, engineering, research and development, warehousing, parts 

distribution, retail sales, and other commercial activities.  Multifamily residential is defined 

as housing that consists of five or more units.  Qualified retail food establishments are 

primarily retail supermarkets, grocery stores, produce markets or delicatessens that offer 

fresh USDA inspected meat and poultry, fresh fruits and vegetables, and dairy products for 

sale.  

 

Exemptions are approved for a term of 1-10 years as determined by the local unit of 

government. The property taxes are based on the previous year’s, which is the year prior 

to the rehabilitation, taxable value. The taxable value is frozen for the duration of the 

exemption.  Completed applications are sent to the local governmental unit for review and 

approval.  Qualified retail food establishment applicants must also submit an additional 

application.  If the local governmental unit approves an application, it is forwarded to the 

State Tax Commission (STC) for further review and approval. 

 

 Commercial Rehabilitation Tax Exemption Certificate applications are available from the 

Michigan Department of Treasury at:  www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions.  

 

2. Who establishes a Commercial Rehabilitation District? 

 

 The legislative body of a “qualified local governmental unit” may establish a commercial 

rehabilitation district on its own initiative or upon a written request filed by the owner or 

owners of property comprising at least 50% of all taxable value of the property located 

within a proposed commercial rehabilitation district. See question 26 for an explanation of 

what constitutes a “qualified local governmental unit.” 

 

 

 

 

http://www.michigan.gov/taxes


Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 2 

3.  What are the requirements for the formation of a Commercial Rehabilitation 

District? 

 

 A Commercial Rehabilitation District may consist of one or more parcels or tracts of land 

or a portion of a parcel or tract of land, provided that the parcel or tract of land or portion 

of a parcel or tract of land within the district is a “qualified facility,” as defined by MCL 

207.842(h) (see question 27).  

 

A “Commercial Rehabilitation District” or “district” is further defined by MCL 207.842(b) 

as: “an area not less than 3 acres in size of a qualified local governmental unit . . . .  

However, if the commercial rehabilitation district is located in a downtown or business 

area or contains a qualified retail food establishment, as determined by the legislative body 

of the qualified local governmental unit, the district may be less than 3 acres in size.” 

 

Before adopting a resolution establishing a commercial rehabilitation district, the qualified 

local governmental unit must give written notice by certified mail to the county in which 

the proposed district is to be located and the owners of all real property within the 

proposed commercial rehabilitation district and shall afford an opportunity for a hearing 

on the establishment of the commercial rehabilitation district. The qualified local 

governmental unit must give public notice of the hearing not less than 10 days or more 

than 30 days before the date of the hearing.” 

 

Following the public hearing, the legislative body of the qualified local governmental unit 

may establish a Commercial Rehabilitation District by resolution. The resolution must set 

forth a finding determination that the district meets the requirements of the Act. A sample 

resolution can be found at: www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions.  

 

4. Can a request to establish a Commercial Rehabilitation District be denied? 

 

 Yes.  The qualified local governmental unit must “give written notice by certified mail to 

the county in which the proposed district is to be located and the owners of all real property 

within the proposed commercial rehabilitation district and shall afford an opportunity for 

a hearing on the establishment of the commercial rehabilitation district at which any of 

those owners and any other resident or taxpayer of the qualified local governmental unit 

may appear and be heard.” MCL 207.843(3). The local governmental unit may deny the 

establishment of the district by resolution. 

 

Once the county receives a copy of the resolution establishing a Commercial Rehabilitation 

District, they have 28 days to reject the establishment of the district by written notification 

to the qualified local governmental unit by the elected county executive. If the county does 

not have an elected county executive, the county can reject the establishment of the district 

by resolution of the county board of commissioners. MCL 207.843(5). 

 

 

 

http://www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions


Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 3 

5. How do I apply for a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate? 

 

Applications for Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificates are filed with the local 

governmental unit by the owner of the property.   

 

File two (2) copies of the completed application and all attachments with the clerk of the 

local governmental unit where the property is located. The property must meet the 

following requirements: 

 

a. The property must be located in a “qualified local governmental unit” as defined 

by MCL 207.842(i). 

 

b. The property must be located in a “commercial rehabilitation district” as defined 

by MCL 207.842(b). 

 

c. The property must meet the definition of “commercial property” as defined by 

MCL 207.842(a). 

 

d. The proposed project must meet the definition of “rehabilitation” in MCL 

207.842(k). 

 

6.  What documents must accompany an application for a Commercial Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate? 

 

a. A general description of the facility (including year built, original use, most recent 

use, number of stories, square footage); 

 

b. A general description of the rehabilitated facility’s proposed use; 

 

c. A detailed description of the general nature and extent of the rehabilitation to be 

undertaken; 

 

d. A descriptive list of the fixed building equipment that will be a part of the 

rehabilitated facility; 

 

e. A time schedule for undertaking and completing the facility’s rehabilitation; 

 

f. A statement of economic advantages expected from the exemption; 

 

g. A legal description of the property outlined in the application; 

 

h. A building permit, if construction has started on the project. 

 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 4 

i. A contractor’s bid or itemized list of costs matching the investment amount 

reported on the box titled Estimated Cost of Rehabilitation on the first page of the 

application.  

 

j.  A copy of the resolution approved by the local unit establishing the eligible district;  

 

k. The local unit resolution, containing all the required statements, approving the 

application for the exemption; and 

 

l. If applicable, a completed Form 4753, Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certification for Qualified Retail Food Establishments. 

 

7.  What does the local governmental unit need to do upon receipt of a Commercial 

Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate Application? 

 

 Upon receipt of an application for a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate, the 

clerk of the qualified local governmental unit shall notify, in writing, the assessor and the 

legislative body of each taxing unit that levies ad valorem property taxes in the qualified 

local governmental unit in which the qualified facility is located.  

 

 Before acting on the application, the qualified local governmental unit must hold a hearing 

on the application and give notice to the applicant, assessor, a representative of the affected 

taxing units, and the general public. The hearing must be held separately from the hearing 

on the establishment of the Commercial Rehabilitation District.  

 

 Not more than 60 days after receiving an application, the qualified local governmental unit 

must approve or disapprove the application by resolution. Certain resolution statements are 

required. A sample resolution with all required statements, can be found at: 

www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions.  

 

8. What requirements for a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate must be 

met to gain approval at the local governmental unit level? 

 

 An applicant seeking a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate must meet the 

following qualifications: 

 

a. The commencement of the rehabilitation of the qualified facility does not occur 

earlier than six months before the applicant files the application for the Commercial 

Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate.   

 

b. The application relates to a rehabilitation program that when completed constitutes 

a qualified facility within the meaning of the act and that shall be situated within a 

Commercial Rehabilitation District established in a qualified local governmental 

unit eligible under the act. 

 

http://www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions


Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 5 

c. Completion of the qualified facility is calculated to, and will at the time of issuance 

of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to, increase commercial activity, 

create employment, retain employment, prevent a loss of employment, revitalize 

urban areas, or increase the number of residents in the community in which the 

qualified facility is situated. 

 

d. The applicant states, in writing, that the rehabilitation of the qualified facility would 

not be undertaken without the applicant’s receipt of the exemption certificate. 

 

e. The applicant is not delinquent in the payment of any taxes related to the qualified 

facility. 

 

9. What happens if the qualified local governmental unit approves the application? 

 

If the qualified local governmental unit approves the application, the clerk must forward a 

copy of the application and resolution to the STC.  

 

10.  What happens if the qualified local governmental unit disapproves the application? 

 

If the local governmental unit disapproves the application, the reason for disapproval must 

be set forth in writing in the resolution, and the clerk must send a copy of the resolution to 

the applicant and assessor by certified mail. 

 

11. Are there provisions in the application process that are time sensitive? 

 

Yes. MCL 207.848 requires that the commencement of the rehabilitation of the qualified 

facility does not occur earlier than six months before the applicant files the application for 

the Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate.   

 

In addition, State Tax Commission Rule 209.111(2)  states that “[a]ll complete applications 

for commercial rehabilitation exemption certificates received through October 31 shall 

receive consideration and action by the commission before December 31. An application 

received on or after November 1 shall be considered by the commission contingent upon 

staff availability.”  

 

12.  What does the STC do when it receives an application and resolution from the clerk 

of the qualified local governmental unit?  

 

 The STC reviews the application for completeness and compliance with the statute. If the 

application is incomplete, staff sends a letter requesting the missing information. Once the 

application is complete, the STC is required to either approve or disapprove the application 

within 60 days. If the application is approved, the STC issues a Commercial Rehabilitation 

Exemption Certificate, and it is effective December 31st immediately following the date of 

issuance by the STC.  

 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 6 

13. Who determines if a facility qualifies for a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certificate? 

 

 Initially, that determination is made when the application is filed and reviewed by the local 

governmental unit.  However, the local governmental unit’s determination is then reviewed 

by the STC. The STC can approve, modify, or deny the application. 

 

14. Can a decision of the STC regarding a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certificate be appealed? 

 

 Yes. A party aggrieved by the issuance, refusal to issue, revocation, transfer or 

modification of a Commercial Rehabilitation exemption certificate may appeal a final 

decision of the STC by filing a petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal, 

www.michigan.gov/taxtrib, within 35 days.  MCL 205.735a(6). 

 

15. What is the term of a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate? 

 

 A certificate may be issued for a period to be determined by the legislative body of the 

local governmental unit of at least 1 (one) year but not to exceed 10 (ten) years.  If the 

number of years determined is less than 10 (ten), the certificate may be subject to review 

by the legislative body of the qualified local governmental unit and the certificate may be 

extended.  The total amount of time determined for the certificate, including any 

extensions, shall not exceed 10 (ten) years after the completion of the qualified facility. 

 

16. What determines the starting date of a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certificate? 

 

 The effective date of the certificate is December 31st immediately following the date of 

issuance of the certificate by the STC. 

 

17. How is the Commercial Rehabilitation Tax computed for a rehabilitated facility? 

 

 A specific tax, known as the commercial rehabilitation tax, is levied upon every owner of 

a rehabilitated facility to which a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate is 

issued. MCL 207.850. 

 

Calculating the commercial rehabilitation tax is a two-step process.   

 

First, multiply the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes for that year by all taxing units by 

the taxable value of the real property (excluding land) for the tax year immediately 

preceding the effective date of the commercial rehabilitation exemption. 

 

Second, multiply the local school district operating and state education tax mills by the 

difference between the taxable value of the real property (excluding land) for the current 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 7 

tax year and the taxable value of the real property (excluding land) for the year immediately 

preceding the effective date of the exemption. 

 

 For a qualified retail food establishment that was issued a certificate on or before December 

31, 2009, the tax is the sum of the product computed by multiplying the total mills levied 

as ad valorem taxes for that year by all taxing units (including local school district operating 

and the state education tax) by the taxable value of the real property (excluding land) for 

the tax year immediately preceding the rehabilitation and the product computed by 

multiplying the local school district operating and state education tax mills by the 

difference between the taxable value of the real property (excluding land) for the current 

tax year and the taxable value of the real property (excluding land) for the tax year 

immediately preceding the rehabilitation. 

 

18. Are special assessment millage rates impacted by the granting of a Commercial 

Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate? 

 

 Special assessment millage rates may be impacted.  Millage-based special assessments 

levied under Public Act 33 of 1951 do not apply to property with a Commercial 

Rehabilitation Act exemption.  However, the special assessments would still be applicable 

to the land on which the Commercial Rehabilitation Act exemption property is located.  

Conversely, for millage-based special assessments levied under public acts other than 

Public Act 33 of 1951, property with a Commercial Rehabilitation Act exemption pays on 

the full special assessment millage rate, the same as any “ad valorem” property. 

 

19. For Qualified Retail Food Establishments, how do you determine if you are located 

in an “underserved area?” 

 

 Under the “Commercial Rehabilitation Act” link on the Property Tax Exemption Section 

website (www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions) click on “Qualified Retail Food 

Establishments.” Then click on “Eligibility Requirements,” which describes how to find 

the census tract that you are located in.  Last, click on “Census Tracts Regarding 

Underserved Areas” for a listing of qualifying census tracts. 

 

20. Can a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate be transferred or amended? 

 

 Yes.  MCL 207.853 allows a certificate to be transferred and assigned by the holder to a 

new owner of the qualified facility.  The new owner must first apply and be approved by 

the qualified local governmental unit before the transfer may occur.  A certificate may also 

be amended if the number of years initially exempted was fewer than ten.  The certificate 

may then be subject to review by the legislative body of the qualified local governmental 

unit and be extended. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions


Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 8 

21. Can a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate be revoked? 

 

 Yes.  The legislative body of the qualified local governmental unit may, by resolution, 

revoke the Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate of a facility if it finds that the 

completion of rehabilitation of the qualified facility has not occurred within the time 

authorized by the legislative body in the exemption certificate or a duly authorized 

extension of that time or that the holder of the Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certificate has not proceeded in good faith with the operation of the qualified facility in a 

manner consistent with the purposes of the act and in the absence of circumstances that are 

beyond control of the holder of the exemption certificate. MCL 207.852(1). 

 

 In addition, the holder of a Commercial Rehabilitation Certificate may send, by certified 

mail, a request to revoke the certificate to the qualified local governmental unit. Upon 

receipt of the request, the legislative body of the local governmental unit may, by 

resolution, revoke the certificate. MCL 207.852(2). 

 

22. When does the revocation of a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate take 

effect? 

 

 The revocation of a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate is effective the 

December 31st of the year in which the local governmental unit resolves to revoke the 

certificate.   

 

23. Can a revoked Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate be reinstated? 

 

 Yes. Pursuant to MCL 207.853(3), a Commercial Rehabilitation Certificate can be revoked 

under two circumstances. If the holder of the revoked certificate is requesting 

reinstatement, they must submit a written request to the qualified local governmental unit 

and the STC. If a subsequent owner is requesting reinstatement of a revoked certificate, 

they must file an application with the qualified local governmental unit.   

 

If the legislative body of the qualified local governmental unit submits a resolution of 

concurrence to the STC, and the facility continues to qualify under the Act, a revoked 

Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate may be reinstated by the STC. 

 

24. What is the definition of “Commercial Property?” 

 

 MCL 207.842(a) defines “Commercial Property” as:  

 

“. . . land improvements classified by law for general ad valorem tax 

purposes as real property including real property assessable as personal 

property pursuant to sections 8(d) and 14(6) of the general property tax act, 

1893 PA 206; MCL 211.8 and 211.14, the primary purpose and use of which 

is the operation of a commercial business enterprise or multifamily 

residential use.  Commercial property shall also include facilities related to 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 9 

a commercial business enterprise under the same ownership at that location, 

including, but not limited to, office, engineering, research and development, 

warehousing, parts distribution, retail sales, and other commercial activities.  

Commercial property also includes a building or group of contiguous 

buildings previously used for industrial purposes that will be converted to 

the operation of a commercial business enterprise.  Commercial property 

does not include any of the following:  land or property of a public utility” 

(emphasis added). 

 

25. What is the definition of “multifamily residential use?” 

 

“‘Multifamily residential use’ means multifamily housing consisting of 5 or more 

units.” MCL 207.842(g).  

 

26.  What is the definition of a “qualified local governmental unit?” 

 

“‘Qualified local governmental unit’ means a city, village, or township.” MCL 207.842(i).  

 

27. What is the definition of a “Qualified Facility?” 

 

 A “Qualified Facility” is defined by MCL 207.842(h) as: 

 

“A qualified retail food establishment or a building or group of contiguous 

buildings of commercial property that is 15 years old or older or has been 

allocated for a new market tax credit under section 45d of the internal 

revenue code, 26 USE 45d.  Qualified facility also includes a building or a 

group of contiguous buildings, a portion of a building or group of 

contiguous buildings previously used for commercial or industrial purposes, 

obsolete industrial property, and vacant property which within the 

immediately preceding 15 years, was commercial property as defined in 

subdivision (a).  Qualified facility shall also include vacant property located 

within a city with a population of more than 500,000 according to the most 

recent federal decennial census and from which a previous structure has 

been demolished and on which commercial property is or will be newly 

constructed provided an application for a certificate has been filed with that 

city before July 1, 2010.  A qualified facility also includes a hotel or motel 

that has additional meeting or convention space that is attached to a 

convention and trade center that is over 250,000 square feet in size and that 

is located within a county with a population of more than 1,100,000 and less 

than 1,600,000 as of the most recent decennial census.  A qualified facility 

does not include property that is to be used as a casino or a professional 

sports stadium.  As used in this subdivision, “casino” means a casino or a 

parking lot, hotel, motel, or retail store owned or operated by a casino, an 

affiliate, or an affiliated company, regulated by this state pursuant to the 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 10 

Michigan gaming control and revenue act, 1996 IL 1, MCL 432.201 to 

432.226” (emphasis added). 

 

28. How is “rehabilitation” defined as it pertains to the Commercial Rehabilitation Act? 

 

 “Rehabilitation” is defined by MCL 207.842(k) as: 

 

“. . . [C]hanges to qualified facilities that are required to restore or modify 

the property, together with all appurtenances, to an economically efficient 

condition.  Rehabilitation includes major renovation and modification 

including, but not necessarily limited to, the improvement of floor loads, 

correction of deficient or excessive height, new or improved fixed building 

equipment including heating, ventilation, and lighting, reducing multistory 

facilities to 1 or 2 stories, improved structural support including 

foundations, improved roof structure and cover, floor replacement, 

improved wall placement, improved exterior and interior appearance of 

buildings, and other physical changes required to restore or change the 

property to an economically efficient condition.  Rehabilitation for a 

qualified retail food establishment also includes new construction.  

Rehabilitation also includes new construction of a qualified facility that is a 

hotel or motel that has additional meeting or convention space that is 

attached to a convention or trade center that is over 250,000 square feet in 

size, located within a county with a population of more than 1,100,000 and 

less than 1,600,000 as of the most recent decennial census, if that new 

construction is an economic benefit to the local community as determined 

by the qualified local governmental unit.  Rehabilitation also includes new 

construction on vacant property from which a previous structure has been 

demolished and if that new construction is an economic benefit to the local 

community as determined by the qualified local governmental unit.  

Rehabilitation shall not include improvements aggregating less than 10% of 

the true cash value of the property at commencement of the rehabilitation 

of the qualified facility.” 

 

29. What is required of the Local Governmental Unit regarding the yearly status 

reporting of Commercial Rehabilitation Exemptions to the STC? 

 

 No later than October 15th of each year, the assessor of each qualified local governmental 

unit containing properties subject to a Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate 

shall file Form 4769 Assessing Officer Report for Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

with the STC. The report must include the current value of the property to which the 

exemption pertains, the value on which the commercial rehabilitation tax is based, and a 

current estimate of the number of jobs retained or created by the exemption, and the number 

of new residents.  

 



Frequently Asked Questions 

Commercial Rehabilitation Act 

(PA 210 of 2005, as amended) 

 

Version:  8/21/2018 11 

30. Where can I obtain copies of previously issued Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption 

Certificates? 

 

 Copies of certificates acted upon by the STC after January 1, 2013 are available on the 

Department of Treasury website at:   

www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions.  

 

Choose the exemption program under which the certificate was issued.  Within the 

“Certificate Activity” link, the certificates are listed according to the date they were acted 

upon. 

http://www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

New Business 



 

 

 
  

 

 

RESOLUTION 2024-07: SUPPORT OF MGD INDIAN RIVER LLC PROJECT 
 
 

Township of Tuscarora 
County of Cheboygan, State of Michigan 

 
 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Township of Tuscarora, 

County of Cheboygan, State of Michigan, held on April 2, 2024, at 7:00 p.m., Eastern Standard 

Time. 

PRESENT: Members:           

 

ABSENT: Members:           

 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member 

______________________ and supported by Member ________________________: 

WHEREAS, MGD INDIAN RIVER LLC owns property in the Tuscarora Township 

Commerce Park commonly referred to as 5384 Commerce Park Blvd.  Indian River MI 49749 

WHEREAS, on April 3rd, 2024 the Cheboygan County Planning Commission will 

consider a special use application for said property. 

WHEREAS, the township will benefit greatly from this development and its addition to 

the commercial tax base.  

           WHEREAS, the Tuscarora Township Board of Trustees also supports the language and 

intent of this application. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Tuscarora Township Board of Trustees 



 

 

hereby supports the granting of said special use permit for this location within its Commerce 

Park.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of 

this resolution be and the same hereby are rescinded. 

AYES:  Members:           

 

   

 

NAYS: Members:           

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ______________. 

 
 
            
      Jay Reidsma 
      Township Clerk 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by 

the Township Board of the Township of Tuscarora, County of Cheboygan, Michigan, at a regular 

meeting held on April 2, 2024, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said 

meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 

267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept 

and will be or have been made available as required by said Act. 

 

 

     ______________________________ 
     Jay Reidsma 
     Township Clerk  















































 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  April 2, 2024  
 
TITLE:   PNC Credit Card 
 
SUMMARY:    To obtain a credit card that is serviced locally. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  No change. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  To change credit card companies to one that is locally serviced. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Clerk   
 
DEPT/BOARD/COMMISSION:  Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    None  



 

 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 2, 2024 
 
TITLE: Set Compensation for  

1.  Board of Review Employees   
2. Parks request 

 
SUMMARY: Set pay for BOR employees, Parks request for increase in pay. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   BOR within budget; parks increased labor costs to be determined. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  TBD 
 
PREPARED BY:   Supervisor 
 
DEPT/BOARD/COMMISSION: Board of Trustees 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Parks request 
 



1

supervisor@tuscaroratwp.com

From: Doug Schofield <maintsup@tuscaroratwp.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 1:40 PM
To: Robert Kramer
Subject: wages

Im requesting that the township board approves paying 18.00 to Dennis Reanoud . Dennis is an adult and 
this will be his career . he comes vary well recommended . and will be a much needed asset to the 
township . Dennis will be taking on alot of my physical work load  




